
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, October 6, 2021

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

21-1337 Common Council Meeting Minutes of September 15, 2021

 

CC Minutes 9-15-21.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

21-1346 Proclamations:

- Mental Health Day Proclamation

- Coming Out Day Proclamation

- Indigenous Peoples' Day Proclamation

- White Cane Safety Day Proclamation

- Fire Prevention Week Proclamation

- Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation

 

Mental Health Day Proclamation.pdf

Coming Out Day Proclamation.pdf

Indigenous Peoples' Day Proclamation.pdf

White Cane Awareness Day Proclamation.pdf

Fire Prevention Week Proclamation.pdf

Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

21-1347 COVID-19 Report

COVID -19 Council Update 100621.pdfAttachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 10/5/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20085
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd9c81a9-465f-4099-b275-4d7e71a12af4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20094
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d1e84209-2315-4748-8994-f5764ca01775.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6f7d1861-fa2a-432a-822c-1d0679129178.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3198e71e-f938-4ffd-9e07-351c2afe69a5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=16ed495f-9828-4eeb-a474-92ddb8d49e54.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c2eddd0-15ce-43e1-b6dc-28f76c68709f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fc261258-8d46-4785-8336-595bbbac666b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20095
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a66552b-2a7e-48fe-9c88-711b8503c52c.pdf


October 6, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

21-1280 Public Hearing for Rezoning #10-21, 2121 S. Schaefer Street, from 

PD/C-2 #34-84 to PD/C-2 #10-21

 

RZ #10-21_Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

21-1248 Request to approve PD Rezoning #10-21 for the subject parcel located at 

2121 South Schaefer Street (Tax Id #31-9-1114-01), including the adjacent 

one-half (1/2) right-of-way, as shown on the attached maps, from PD/C-2 

Calumet Street Planned Development General Commercial District 

#34-84 to PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial District 

#10-21, along with the attached Implementation Plan Document and 

Development Plan

StaffReport_Schaefer Street_Rezoning_For09-08-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/8/21 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on October 6, 2021.

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

21-1321 Action Item:  Award Design, Engineering, and Permitting Services for the 

WE Energies Trail to KL Engineering for a contract amount of $134,912.58

 

WE Energies Trail Committee Memo.docAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/20/21 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 10/5/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20028
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=30ca0ef4-27e1-4340-8c46-2c41d8b80f5d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=19996
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=df902144-3199-4cf9-96fd-722077483f0e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20069
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=797b15cd-29ca-4927-a356-a369522e9080.doc


October 6, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

21-1323 Request to approve Apple Fields Development Agreement

 

Apple Fields DA.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/20/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-1324 Request to award the Transportation Utility Funding Study to Ehlers/RA 

Smith consulting team in an amount not to exceed $72,187

 

TUF Study Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/20/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-1325 Request to award three (3) year contract to CliftonLarsonAllen LLP to 

provide audit services for the 2021, 2022 and 2023 annual audits

 

2021-2023 Audit Services.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

9/20/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

21-1317 Request to waive repurchase rights for Lot 4, Plat 1, in the Northeast 

Business Park, allowing the transfer from Chad Cassiani to Delanie D. 

McGlone or assigns; this waiver is not transferable, survivable, or 

assignable and the City's repurchase rights would remain on the property

Memo Repurchase Waiver Lot 4 NEBP Plat 1_9-22-21.pdf

Lots 1-6 NE Business Park Plat 1 Covenants Waiver Except Repurchase Rights.pdf

Offer to Purchase Lot 4 Plat 1 NE Business Park McGlone.pdf

Lot 4 NEBP.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

9/22/21 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 10/5/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20071
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=810b2418-9757-46fa-8c67-d57a1d051025.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20072
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2d9efd7-b7ec-4eb2-b088-5f5f63bc472e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20073
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fdeeaedc-b7ca-4632-8fd5-5339825ddc9e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20065
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bb08c380-ab91-4a02-ad22-f70878af7311.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=25be4be9-3507-4d77-9b6d-5cecc669ec8b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7d8cb054-4dd9-4520-90f9-370fb33924b7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a4720913-e82a-430e-ae2f-6a602d92e26b.pdf


October 6, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

21-1344 Ordinance 69-21

Ordinances going to Council 10-6-21.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 10/5/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20092
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=34c33cdd-8696-4f60-b553-22be14ca5d6e.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, September 15, 2021

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Firkus.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson Prohaska attended the meeting virtually.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska, Alderperson Chad Doran and 

Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 14 - 

Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael SmithExcused: 2 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All departments were represented.

The following had no items on the agenda and therefore are excused:

Finance, Valley Transit

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

21-1278 Common Council Meeting Minutes of September 1, 2021

 

CC Minutes 9-1-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20026
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3a9ed436-a5e7-45c6-abb2-bffc179e6953.pdf


September 15, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

21-1309 Board & Commission Reappointments

 

Reappointments ARA CPC Memo 9'15'2021.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Thao moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Reappointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-1310 Hispanic Heritage Month Proclamation

Hispanic Heritage Month Proclamation.pdfAttachments:

21-1308 Library Project Update

 

Adam Semel of SOM, presented the Library Project Update.

21-1311 COVID-19 Report

COVID -19 Council Update 091521.pdfAttachments:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

The following spoke regarding Item 21-1269 Resolution #13-R-21:

Tami McLaughlin, 1618 N Appleton St.

Jeffrey Frishner, 511 Seneca Dr.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20057
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d18eda14-cd2d-4740-9c6e-3d8aa998b44a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20058
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0008427a-3765-4649-9928-a1654327dd1b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20056
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20059
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=813afc18-16fa-4665-898a-e5b77e09c46e.pdf


September 15, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

21-1269 Resolution #13-R-21 - Support for Resettlement of Afghanistan Parolees 

in Appleton

#13-R-21 Afghan Refugee Resettlement- UPDATED.pdf

Refugee Resettlement How You Can Help.pdf

Ronna Swift Support_Refugee Resolution.pdf

Constituent Jeanne Roberts Remarks_Fenton_Refugee Resolution.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the 

Resolution be amended in the final Be It Further Resolved paragraph to read:

Be It Further Resolved that the Common Council of Appleton supports the 

department of Community & Economic Development with facilitating and 

coordinating necessary response with county, state, and federal government 

departments and agencies, in accordance with previously established and 

proven best practices for emergency resettlement, with a focus on rapid 

response housing options within the City of Appleton.

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Joe Prohaska

12 - 

Nay: Alderperson Chad Doran1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Van Zeeland moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Resolution be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Joe Prohaska

11 - 

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran2 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20017
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=152579b1-ba71-4f19-8f18-0a2258955cbc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6b4baf75-c493-481a-9e55-203307250158.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e37abdec-56de-4606-93ea-a3e2d33b9ac4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e5dd37e4-64f6-4fc7-becc-0c31e98b75dd.pdf


September 15, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0121 Discuss Alderperson salaries.

 

Elected Alderperson official salary.pdf

Alderperson Raises Deadline memo_HR.IT_2-23-2021.pdf

2021 Alderperson Compensation.pdf

alderperson comparison 2021.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the 

Alderperson salaries be approved as amended in Committee, to $6,750 

beginning April 2023. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate 

Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Joe Prohaska

10 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Joe Martin and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

3 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Meltzer moved, Alderperson Alfheim seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

21-1303 Request from Red Lion Hotel for a street occupancy permit to place 

dumpsters on College Avenue (meters CAW 305, 307, 309, 311 & 313) 

intermittently through December 31, 2021.

 

Red Lion street occupancy permit.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=16872
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=004076c4-eb06-41c4-b00c-a7516481f475.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4fc0195c-7fa7-4733-8f7b-1ab487a6b65b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=19c44343-607f-423a-9b70-0d92f5bab130.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=abf2f190-9e5b-4532-97ae-7b8133c7cbb3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20051
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=76b5fb2c-d499-4bb2-bb51-41434cb7e411.pdf


September 15, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-1300 Recommend contract award for public safety camera server to Cable 

Com LLC in an amount not to exceed $29,400.26.

 

Contract for public safety camera server-Cable Com LLC.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

21-1234 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

ANK Restaurant Inc d/b/a Cinders Charcoal Grill, Adam Del Fosse, 

Agent, located at 221 S Kensington Dr, contingent upon approval from all 

departments.

Cinders Charcoal Grill.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

21-0856 Request to approve the Apple Fields Final Plat as shown on the attached 

maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_Apple Fields_FinalPlat_For9-8-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

21-1245 City Program Funding Approval and City Proposals for 2022 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding

City Proposals Memo to CEDC 09-08-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20048
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2ada361-67a7-4a17-8c29-39857789ddb4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=19982
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6dc70a97-d3f0-4d4e-a1fc-41d4311e80f9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17606
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ad3d744a-ab66-4d60-be0f-a08328471d7e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=19993
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5829813b-e70a-45d0-a94c-bb39c3ac475c.pdf


September 15, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-1259 Request to approve the attached Notice of Clarification to the attached 

Warranty Deed dated April 11, 1990 affirming the variance granted for 

continuation of office use

Integrity Bldg Memo to CEDC 09-08-21.pdf

Notice of Clarification_Deed Restriction Variance_2021.pdf

Warranty Deed_Integrity_1990.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

21-1267 Request to approve over hire for Water Plant Instrumentation Technician.  

 

Instrumentation Technician Overhire Request 08-30-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

21-1189 Resolution #11-R-21

Sidewalks Near Linwood Park

#11-R-21 Linwood Park Sidewalks.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Doran, that the 

Resolution be approved as amended in the Parks & Recreation Committee. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson 

Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe 

Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Nay: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20007
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=08e58fc0-7d6a-41b0-b92e-959977ad4ac9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=54e73c41-b83b-48e7-859c-292fc87b37f2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e8ff2ffb-8d00-417e-9afa-4e65c40c6d41.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20015
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d6146516-77e3-4c96-86c2-5486d87cf163.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17939
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c0183c6-17a9-4a32-8915-d3a9205c4bb9.pdf


September 15, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

21-1279 Ordinances #67-21 and #68-21

Ordinances going to Council 9-15-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland, that the 

Ordinances be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 9:04 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Matthew Reed and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20027
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1d1f4abb-aac0-4427-a710-95ffc110adce.pdf














230 + 228 = 458 (2 week case counts)

458 / 75,000 = .0006507 (Appleton population 75,000)

.0006107 x 100,000 = 610.7 (equals burden)

Low less than or equal to 10 per 100,000 people
Moderate greater than 10 but less than 50 per 100,000 people
Moderately High greater than 50 but less than 100 per 100,000 people
High is greater than 100 per 100,000 people
Very High is greater than 350 per 100,000 people
Critically High is greater than 1,000 per 100,000 people



0

200

400

600

800

000

200
3/

23
/2

02
0

3/
30

/2
02

0
4/

6/
20

20
4/

13
/2

02
0

4/
20

/2
02

0
4/

27
/2

02
0

5/
4/

20
20

5/
11

/2
02

0
5/

18
/2

02
0

5/
25

/2
02

0
6/

1/
20

20
6/

8/
20

20
6/

15
/2

02
0

6/
22

/2
02

0
6/

29
/2

02
0

7/
6/

20
20

7/
13

/2
02

0
7/

20
/2

02
0

7/
27

/2
02

0
8/

3/
20

20
8/

10
/2

02
0

8/
17

/2
02

0
8/

24
/2

02
0

8/
31

/2
02

0
9/

7/
20

20
9/

14
/2

02
0

9/
21

/2
02

0
9/

28
/2

02
0

10
/5

/2
02

0
10

/1
2/

20
20

10
/1

9/
20

20
10

/2
6/

20
20

11
/2

/2
02

0
11

/9
/2

02
0

11
/1

6/
20

20
11

/2
3/

20
20

11
/3

0/
20

20
12

/7
/2

02
0

12
/1

4/
20

20
12

/2
1/

20
20

12
/2

8/
20

20
1/

4/
20

21
1/

11
/2

02
1

1/
18

/2
02

1
1/

25
/2

02
1

2/
1/

20
21

2/
8/

20
21

2/
15

/2
02

1
2/

22
/2

02
1

3/
1/

20
21

3/
8/

20
21

3/
15

/2
02

1
3/

22
/2

02
1

3/
29

/2
02

1
4/

5/
20

21
4/

12
/2

02
1

4/
19

/2
02

1
4/

26
/2

02
1

5/
3/

20
21

5/
10

/2
02

1
5/

17
/2

02
1

5/
24

/2
02

1
5/

31
/2

02
1

6/
7/

20
21

6/
14

/2
02

1
6/

21
/2

02
1

6/
28

/2
02

1
7/

5/
20

21
7/

12
/2

02
1

7/
19

/2
02

1
7/

26
/2

02
1

8/
2/

20
21

8/
9/

20
21

8/
16

/2
02

1
8/

23
/2

02
1

8/
30

/2
02

1
9/

6/
20

21
9/

13
/2

02
1

9/
20

/2
02

1
9/

27
/2

02
1

Two Week Total New COVID-19 Cases in Appleton, 
Rate per 100,000 Population, Risk Level Assessments per WDHS 

Low Moderate Moderately High High Very High Critically High



https://covid-19-appleton.hub.arcgis.com/

10/3/2021
(Data from 12AM- 11:59PM on the above date)



VACCINATIONS  TO  DATE   (10/04/21)

FULLY VACCINATED AT LEAST ONE SINGLE DOSE

STATE 54.0% 56.9%
CALUMET 49.2% 51.4%
WINNEBAGO 52.4% 55.9%
OUTAGAMIE 54.6% 57.3%
APPLETON 58.3% 61.8%
APPLETON VACCINE ELIGIBLE
APPLETON 12-17 YEARS

69.3%
53.8%

73.5%
60.1%



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
#10-21 

RE: Proposed Zone Change 
 

A public hearing will be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, Appleton, Wisconsin, on 
October 6, 2021, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, to consider the following 
proposed zone change: 

 
Rezoning #10-21: A rezoning request has been initiated by the owner and applicant, KKREW 
Properties/Dean Kroening in the matter of amending Chapter Twenty-three (Zoning Ordinance) 
of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton for the following described real estate (2121 
South Schaefer Street including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of South Schaefer 
Street). The applicant requests to rezone the property from PD/C-2 Calumet Street Planned 
Development General Commercial District #34-84 to PD/CD-2 Planned Development General 
Commercial District #10-21. Maps are available upon request at the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
History:  In 1985, the Calumet Street Planned Development District #34-84 (now known as 
PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial District #34-84) was approved to allow for 
the construction of a shopping center complex which included a grocery store, retail, 
professional, personal, restaurant uses and an 8-unit multi-family apartment building on Property 
Tax Id #s 31-9-1114-00, 31-9-1114-01, 31-9-1116-00 and 31-9-1118-00.   
 
Purpose of the Rezoning: The owner/applicant is making this request to allow for 
redevelopment of the site and construction of a second commercial building on this parcel.  The 
proposed rezoning will provide clear direction on the development standards for the subject 
parcel going forward and will provide minimal zoning code exceptions that will allow for the 
redevelopment of this infill parcel. 
 
Legal Description: Parcel # 31-9-1114-01 
 
Being a part of Lot Twenty (20), Purdy Farm Plat, locate in the Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of 
Section Five (5), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Eighteen (18) East, City of Appleton, 
Calumet County, Wisconsin containing 22,678 square feet (0.521 acres) of land and being 
described by: 
Beginning at the southeast corner of said Lot 20; thence N89º-28’-39”W 190.15 feet along the 
south line of said Lot 20 to the southwest corner thereof; thence N00º-15’-26”W 119.30’ along 
the west line of said Lot 20; thence S89º-28’-39”E 190.08 feet to a point on the east line of said 
Lot 20; thence S00º-17’-39”E 119.30 feet along said east line of Lot 20 to the point of beginning.  
Being subject to any and all easements and restrictions of record.  
 
September 9, 2021 
 
RUN: September 14, 2021    KAMI LYNCH 
 September 21, 2021    City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  KKREW Properties c/o Dean Kroening 

 

Address/Parcel #: 2121 South Schaefer Street (Tax Id #31-9-1114-01) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant proposes to rezone the subject property from PD/C-2 Calumet Street 

Planned Development General Commercial District #34-84 to PD/C-2 Planned Development General 

Commercial District #10-21.  The owner/applicant is making this request to allow for redevelopment of 

the site and construction of a second commercial building on this parcel.  The proposed rezoning will 

provide clear direction on the development standards for the subject parcel going forward and will 

provide minimal zoning code exceptions that will allow for the redevelopment of this infill parcel. 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

In 1985, the Calumet Street Planned Development District #34-84 (now known as PD/C-2 Planned 

Development General Commercial District #34-84) was approved to allow for the construction of a 

Shopping Center Complex with a mix of retail, professional services, personal services, restaurant uses 

and an 8-unit multi-family apartment building to be located on Property Tax Id#’s 31-9-1114-00, 31-9-

1116-00, 31-9-1114-01 and 31-9-1118-00.   

 

On May 18, 1994, Ordinance 61-94 was adopted, which repealed and recreated the Zoning Ordinance.  

This Zoning Ordinance introduced the Planned Development (PD) Overlay District.  As a result, the 

subject property’s zoning classification changed to PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial  

District #34-84. 

 

On June 2, 2004, Ordinance 74-04 was adopted, which repealed and recreated the Zoning Ordinance that 

is currently in place.  This Zoning Ordinance included a section on transition rules. Section 23-35(c) 

states, “Planned development districts in force at the time of adoption of this ordinance shall continue to 

be controlled under the standards of the existing planned development district until rezoned by Common 

Council.  However, processes for approving or amending adopted final development plans, plats, certified 

survey maps, or site plans, shall follow the procedures of this ordinance.” 

 

On August 4, 2021 the Common Council approved the rezoning of Parcel #31-9-1117-00 to R-3 Multi-

Family District, which removed the parcel from the PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial 

District #34-84 (Rezoning #8-21).   

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Plan Commission Informal Hearing Meeting Date:  September 8, 2021 

 

Common Council Public Hearing Meeting Date:  October 6, 2021 (Public 

Hearing on Rezoning) 

 

Item:  Planned Development (PD) Rezoning #10-21 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel 

Community and 

Economic 

Development 



Rezoning #10-21 

September 8, 2021 

Page 2 
 

When the Planned Development District was initially created/adopted, the development plan did not 

include a detailed site plan or site layout for the subject parcel. Because of this, a PD amendment is 

required for construction of a new building or other site modifications.  The site plans associated with 

those amendments dictate what is permitted to be constructed for the areas subject to the amendments.  A 

PD amendment was adopted by the Common Council on September 5, 1990 for the construction of the 

existing multi-tenant commercial building.  The building was constructed in 1990.  A PD amendment for 

the former Lube Shop was approved by the Plan Commission on April 11, 1988.  That building was 

recently destroyed in a fire.  These amendments were specific to those development proposals/buildings 

on the subject site. The property owner would like to redevelop the site and construct a second 

commercial building on the subject property.  The proposed rezoning will provide clear direction on the 

development standards for the subject parcel going forward and will provide minimal zoning code 

exceptions that will allow for the redevelopment of this infill parcel. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Site Conditions:  The subject site is approximately 22,678 square feet in size and is located on 

South Schaefer Street, south of East Calumet Street.  The property contains a multi-tenant commercial 

building that is approximately 2,400 square feet in size and an associated off-street parking lot.  A former 

quick lube building was located on this site, but was recently razed due to fire damage. 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses:  

North:  PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial District #34-84. The adjacent land uses to the 

north are currently a mix of commercial uses. 

 

South: R-3 Multi-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently multi-family residential. 

 

East:  R-3 Multi-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the east is currently multi-family residential. 

 

West: PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial District #34-84. The adjacent land uses to the 

west are currently a mix of commercial uses. 

 

Proposed Planned Development Overlay District and Ordinance Exceptions:  The planned 

development overlay district allows an applicant to propose uses, development and density standards, and 

design guidelines for the subject property.  Overlay districts provide supplemental regulations in addition 

to, but not necessarily more restrictive than the “base” or underlying zoning district regulations.  The 

customized regulations, as identified in the attached Implementation Plan Document (IPD), were prepared 

to specify standards that are unique to the overlay district.  The proposed development standards for this 

overlay district are listed below: 

 

1) Minimum lot area:  14,000 square feet 

2) Maximum lot coverage:  90% * 

3) Minimum lot width:  60 feet 

4) Minimum front yard:  10 feet 

5) Minimum rear yard:  10 feet * 

 



Rezoning #10-21 

September 8, 2021 

Page 3 
 

6) Minimum side yard: 

a. None. 

b. 10 feet if abutting a residentially zoned district. 

7) Maximum building height:  35 feet. 

 

*Development Standard Exceptions:   

Minimum rear yard building setback:  10 feet (C-2 Zoning District requires a minimum 20 foot rear 

yard setback) 

Maximum Lot Coverage:  90% (C-2 Zoning District allows 75% maximum lot coverage) 

 

Development Plan Summary:  As proposed, the PD overlay district would facilitate the construction of 

a second commercial buildings on the subject property.  The attached development plan drawings show 

the general location of potential building and other site improvements.  As illustrated, the proposed 

commercial building would be approximately 3,800 square feet in size along with the associated off-street 

parking spaces.  Vehicular access would primarily be provided by South Schaefer Street.  Further details 

would be determined and reviewed through the Site Plan review process prior to the issuance of a 

building permit by the Inspections Division. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Review Criteria:  A rezoning is often triggered by development proposals or 

changing circumstances in the City.  In this case, the request is being made to facilitate redevelopment of 

the subject property.  The proposal deviates from zoning regulations regarding development standards 

(rear setback and lot coverage) and off-street parking.  If approved, any future development would need to 

conform to the customized zoning regulations identified in the IPD, as well as other sections of the 

Zoning Ordinance.  Section 23-151 of the Zoning Ordinance establishes criteria for designating a PD 

overlay district, including requirements on the amount of street frontage, size of the district and percent of 

open space.  The subject property contains less than the minimum required 1 acre of land area; however 

Section 23-151(c)(2) states that: Applications for a PD overlay district on sites containing less than the 

required acreage listed above, but not less than the underlying zoning district requirements, may be 

approved upon proof by the owner that the development is in the public interest and that one (1) or more 

of the following conditions exist: 

 

a. The property contains steep topography or other unusual physical features which necessitates 

substantial deviation from the regulations otherwise applicable, in order to ensure a safe, efficient 

and attractive development. 

 

b. The property is adjacent to an existing PD overlay district and will contribute to the maintenance 

of amenities and values of the neighboring district.  The subject parcel is located adjacent to an 

existing Planned Development District on the west and north sides of the property.  The overlay 

district will allow construction of an additional commercial building, which will contribute to the 

purpose of the adjacent overlay district to provide a Shopping Center Complex with a mix of 

retail, professional services, personal services and restaurant uses. 

 

c. The proposal involves the redevelopment of an existing area or makes use of an infill site that 

could not be reasonably developed under conventional zoning requirements.  Due to the infill 

nature of this property, limited parcel size and the placement of the existing building on site, the 



Rezoning #10-21 

September 8, 2021 

Page 4 
 

property owner is not able to reasonably redevelop the site and meet the current development 

standards of the C-2 zoning district. 

 

d. The property lends itself to creative design that will enhance quality of life in the proposed 

development. 

 

It would appear the following criteria established by Section 23-151(c)(2) have been satisfied. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Plan Map 

identifies the subject area as future Commercial designation.  The proposed PD/C-2 Planned Development 

General Commercial District rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are 

related excerpts from the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.5: Economic Development:  

Encourage new development and redevelopment activities that create vital and attractive neighborhoods 

and business districts.  

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use: 

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Standards for Zoning Map Amendments:  Per Section 23-65(d)(3) of the Municipal Code, all 

recommendations for Official Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the adopted plans, goals, 

and policies of the City and with the intent of the Zoning Ordinance.  Related excerpts are listed below. 

 

a. Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezoning, the Plan Commission shall make a 

finding to determine if the following conditions exist.  No rezoning of land shall be approved prior 

to finding at least one of the following: 

 

1. The request for a zone change is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City of 

Appleton.  The rezoning request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030, 

as the Future Land Use Map identifies this area for future commercial uses. 



Rezoning #10-21 

September 8, 2021 

Page 5 
 

 

2. A study submitted by the applicant that indicates that there has been an increase in the demand 

for land in the requested zoning district, and as a result, the supply of land within the City 

mapped as such on the Official Zoning Map, is inadequate to meet the demands for such 

development. 

 

3. Proposed amendments cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack 

of transportation, utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the 

proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning district(s). 

 

4. There is an error in the code text or zoning map as enacted. 

 

b. In addition to the findings required to be made by subsection (a), findings shall be made by the 

Plan Commission on each of the following matters based on the evidence presented: 

 

1. The adequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilities and other required public 

services to serve the proposed site.  This area of the City is served by existing infrastructure, 

and the transportation network should be adequate to serve the subject site. The parcel is 

currently being used for commercial purposes. 

 

2. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses.  A mix of commercial uses and multi-

family residential uses are already present in this area of City and are adjacent to this parcel.  

The parcel is also currently zoned for and being used for commercial purposes.  Any future 

site modifications and/or uses would be reviewed in accordance with the customized zoning 

regulations identified in the IPD, as well as other sections of the Zoning Ordinance. Therefore, 

the proposed rezoning request is unlikely to create adverse impacts in the surrounding 

neighborhood. 

 

Review Criteria:  Based upon the above analysis, it would appear the criteria established by Sections 23-

65(d)(3) and 23-151(o) has been satisfied. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report: This item appeared on the August 17, 2021 TRG Agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based upon the standards for zoning map amendments as required by Sections 23-

65(d)(3) and 23-151(o) of the Zoning Ordinance, that PD Rezoning Application #10-21 to rezone the 

subject site located at 2121 South Schaefer Street (Tax Id #31-9-1114-01) from PD/C-2 Calumet Street 

Planned Development General Commercial District #34-84 to PD/C-2 Planned Development General 

Commercial District #10-21, along with the attached Implementation Plan Document and Development 

Plan, including to the centerline of the adjacent right-of-way and as shown on the attached map, BE 

APPROVED subject to the following: 

 

1. The applicant is responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal rules and 

regulations, and must obtain all appropriate permits and approvals. 

 



Rezoning #10-21 

September 8, 2021 

Page 6 
 

2. Prior to Site Plan approval, the Implementation Plan Document must be finalized, signed by all 

parties involved, and recorded in the Calumet County Register of Deeds Office.  The 

owner/applicant is responsible for recording this document. 

 

3. Prior to issuance of Building Permits, the applicant shall apply for and receive approval of a Site 

Plan in accordance with Section 23-570 of the Municipal Code.   

 

4. Any proposed land division or lot combination activities will need to follow the procedures 

identified in Chapter 17 Appleton Subdivision Ordinance. 

 



0-0
91

8-1
3

0-0
91

8-1

0-0
91

8-4

0-0
91

8-5

0-0
91

8-8
0-0

91
8-7

0-1111-1

0-1111-3

9-1114

9-1114-1

9-1113-1

9-1113-2

9-1113

9-14839-1482
9-1481

9-1
479

9-1
478

9-1477

9-1
480

9-1476

9-1117

9-1484

9-1116
9-1115

9-2229

9-2228

9-2
22

7

9-2389

9-2235

9-2232

9-2231

9-2230

9-22599-2260
9-2579

9-2580

9-2581

9-2582

9-2583

9-2584

9-2585

4-1
88

9

9-2261

9-2379

9-2380

9-2381

9-2382

9-2397

9-2394

9-2392

9-2391

9-2385

9-2384

9-2386

9-2390-1
9-2390

9-2388

9-2387

9-2393

4-1
89

1
4-1

89
2

4-1
89

3

9-2223

9-2681

9-1095 9-4100

9-2680 9-2682

9-2683

9-2599

9-2598

9-2597

9-2596

9-2595

9-2226

9-2225

9-2224

9-2222

9-2684

9-2685

9-2687

9-2686

9-2221

9-2220

9-1096-1

0-1114-1

0-1107-4

9-1111

9-2236

9-2234

9-2233
9-1107

9-1
09

5-1

9-1
09

6-2

0-1
10

7-5

9-1
11

8

9-2
59

4

9-2
58

7

9-2
58

6

0-0918-2

0-0918-3

0-0918-6

0-0918-11

4-0918-2

9-2388-1

9-2383
9-2383-1

R-3

P-I

R-2

C-2

PD/C-2

R-1B

PD/R-3

R-1B

R-1B

PD/R-3 #12-85

R-3

R-1A

R-2

HWY 441

E CALUMET ST
S T

EL
UL

AH
 AV

E TAFT AV

S M
AT

TH
IAS

 STE JOHN STE FREMONT ST

S L
AK

E P
AR

K 
RD

E PLANK RD

S C
AR

PE
NT

ER
 ST

S KENSINGTON DR

E JOHN ST

2121 S. Schaefer Street
Rezoning

PD/C-2 Calumet Street 
Planned Development District #34-84 to

PD/C-2 Planned Development 
General Commercial District #10-21

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 Feet
City Plan Commission

9-8-2021



2121 S. Schaefer Street
Rezoning

PD/C-2 Calumet Street Planned Development District #34-84 to
PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial District #10-21

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
9-8-2021



 

 

 1 

 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN DOCUMENT FOR PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DESIGNATION  
   
                                                                                                              
This Planned Development Designation, to 
be known as Schaefer Street is approved this 
               day of ___________________, 
2021 by the Common Council of the City of 
Appleton, Wisconsin, a Wisconsin Municipal 
Corporation, (hereinafter referred to as the 
“City”) for certain real property located at 
2121 & 2125 S. Schaefer Street (Parcel #31-
9-1114-01) in Appleton and described in 
attached Exhibit A (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Property”). This Implementation Plan 
Document for Planned Development (PD) 
#10-21 Schaefer Street is made and entered 
into by and between KKREW Properties c/o 
Dean Kroening (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Owner/Developer”) and the City. 

    
WHEREAS, Section 23-151 of the Appleton          
Municipal Code requires the recordation of a          
Implementation Plan Document for Planned           
Developments undertaken in the City; and 
      
WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to notify all interested parties of the existence of said 
Implementation Plan Document; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the Owner/Developer and 
the City hereby notify all interested parties as follows: 
 
1. Existence of Implementation Plan Document for Schaefer Street PD #10-21 

The parties hereto have entered into mutually agreeable Development and 
Implementation Plans for the Property. This designation establishes the general 
uses which shall be permitted on the property, a general development plan, a 
specific implementation plan and a statement of development guidelines and 
conditions that must be complied with by the Owner/Developer and all 
subsequent property owners or agents of the property owners. This designation 
also specifies improvements that must be made and conditions that must be 
fulfilled in conjunction with this designation by the Owner/Developer. 

 

Record and return copy to: 

City of Appleton  

Community and Economic Development 

Department 

100 N. Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 

 

Parcel #31-9-1114-01 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 2 

 
2.  Location of Implementation Plan Document. The Implementation Plan 

Document for Schaefer Street PD #10-21 approved by Appleton Common 
Council action on                                               , 2021 and executed by the parties 
on the date of filing with the Calumet County Register of Deeds’ office is on file 
with the Appleton Community Development Department, 100 North Appleton 
Street, Appleton, WI, and is subject to review and reproduction by all interested 
parties upon request. 

 
3.  Subsequent Purchasers. A Planned Development (PD) is a zoning overlay 

district under the City of Appleton Zoning Ordinance. The Implementation Plan 
Document exists for Planned Developments (PDs) under this zoning category 
and are covenants that run with the land. Accordingly, all future purchasers of 
property zoned PD should become familiarized with the individual requirements 
attached to that specific property. 

 
4.  Amendments to the Recorded Development Plans and Implementation Plan 

Document. Pursuant to Section 23-151 of the Appleton Municipal Code, major 
changes in a PD require approval by the City Council and subsequent recording 
of the amendment. The Community Development Director may approve Minor 
Amendments. 

 

5. Development Guidelines and Conditions. The Development Guidelines and 
Conditions include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
A. ALLOWED LAND USES 
 

1. Principal Permitted Land Uses.  The land uses as listed below are allowed as 
principal uses in Schaefer Street PD #10-21: 

 
• All of the principal permitted as listed in Zoning Code Section 23-113(b) for 

the C-2 General Commercial District.   
 
2. Special Uses.  The land uses as listed below are considered special uses in 

Schaefer Street PD #10-21.  Special uses shall follow the review procedures 
outlined in Zoning Code Section 23-66. 
 
• All of the special uses as listed in Zoning Code Section 23-113(e) for the C-2 

General Commercial District.   
 

3. In addition to the land uses allowed in the underlying district the following land 
uses are consistent with the land use regulation exception criteria established by 
Appleton Municipal Code Section 23-151 and are allowed land uses in Schaefer 
Street PD #10-21: 

 

• NONE 



 

 

 3 

  
B.  DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  
 

1. Principal Uses All principal uses, buildings and structures shall comply with the 
minimum development standards lot area, lot width, setbacks, building height and 
other requirements of the underlying zoning district of Chapter 23, Appleton 
Zoning Code as now in effect or hereafter amended unless customized 
development standards are authorized or specifically identified as an ordinance 
exception.  (See below) 

 
Setbacks/Lot Coverage shall be as follows: 
Minimum Lot Area:  14,000 square feet 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  90%  
Minimum Lot Width:  60 feet 
Minimum front yard building setback:  10 feet 
Minimum rear yard building setback:  10 feet 
Minimum side yard building setback:  none, 10 feet if abutting a residentially 
zoned district 
Maximum building height:  35 feet (see Section 23-113(e)) 
 
Development Standard Exceptions:   
Minimum rear yard building setback:  10 feet  
Maximum Lot Coverage:  90%  

 
2. Accessory uses, building and structures – All Accessory uses, buildings and 

structures shall comply with the development standards (front, rear and side yard 
setbacks, building height and other requirements) of Chapter 23, Appleton Zoning 
Code as now in effect or hereafter amended unless customized development 
standards are authorized or specifically identified as an ordinance exception.  
(See below) 

 
 Development Standard Ordinance Exceptions:  N/A  
 
3. Off-Street Parking and Loading Standards –All uses established, expanded, 

change in use shall provide off-street parking space(s), stacking space(s) and 
loading space(s) in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 23, Appleton 
Zoning Code as now in effect or hereafter amended unless customized standards 
are authorized or specifically identified as an ordinance exception.  (See below) 

  
Off-Street Parking and Loading Standard Ordinance Exceptions:  
Minimum off-street parking spaces required: one (1) space for each three 
hundred (300) square feet of gross floor area. 
 

4. Outdoor Lighting Standards – All outdoor lighting shall comply with Chapter 23, 
Appleton Zoning Code as now in effect or hereafter amended unless customized 
standards are authorized or specifically identified as an ordinance exception.  



 

 

 4 

(See below) 
 

Outdoor Lighting Standard Ordinance Exceptions: N/A  
 

5. Landscaping Standards -  Landscaping improvements shall be required as part 
of any site plan. Landscaping shall conform with the requirements of the City’s 
Landscape Standards, including but not limited to, plantings around the 
parking/driveway areas, the dumpster enclosures, and the base of the ground 
signs. A detailed Landscape Plan shall be prepared and submitted to the 
Community Development Department as part of the Site Plan Review and 
approval process pursuant to Chapter 23, Appleton Zoning Code as now in effect 
or hereafter amended unless customized standards are authorized or specifically 
identified as an ordinance exception.  (See below) 

 
Landscaping Standard Ordinance exceptions:  N/A  

 
6. Sign Standards – All signs shall comply with the Chapter 23, Appleton Zoning 

Code as now in effect or hereafter amended unless customized standards are 
authorized or specifically identified as an ordinance exception.  (See below) 

 
Sign Standard Ordinance exceptions:  N/A 

 
7. Designated Open Space Areas 

Open Space Areas. Open Space Areas may either be passive or active in nature 
and shall fully complement the Property.  Such open space may take the form of 
required building setbacks, parks, playgrounds, landscaped green space, nature 
walks and natural areas.  
 

 Schaefer Street PD #10-21 shall provide permanent open space areas equivalent 
to the following percent of gross lot area, unless customized standards are 
authorized or specifically identified as an ordinance exception.   

 
   Percent of gross lot area 

• Planned commercial development 10% 
 
The permanent open space areas be shown and identified on (Exhibit B) 
attached, which demonstrates approximately 23% open space shall remain open 
and free from all improvements except for landscaping, utility work, and access or 
other elements. Future development and/or improvements on this property shall 
maintain a minimum of 10% of gross lot area as designated open space. 

 

Open Space Standard Ordinance exceptions: N/A 
 

8. Site Plan Review is required for Schaefer Street PD #10-21 prior to the issuance 
of building permits pursuant to Chapter 23, Appleton Zoning Code as now in 
effect or hereafter amended. 



 

 

 5 

  
9. Words and Terms Defined – All words and terms wherever they occur in this 

Implementation Plan Document for Schaefer Street PD #10-21, shall be defined 
and interpreted in accordance with Chapter 23, Appleton Zoning Code as now in 
effect or hereafter amended. 

 
10.  Nonconformity - Any existing building, structure or characteristic and any 

existing use within Schaefer Street PD #10-21 not in conformity with the 
regulations herein prescribed, shall be regarded as nonconforming, but may be 
continued, extended or changed, subject to the special regulations provided in 
Chapter 23, Appleton Zoning Code as now in effect or hereafter amended with 
respect to nonconforming, structures, uses and characteristics. 

 
C. PLATTING REQUIREMENTS -  No person, firm or corporation shall combine lots, 

adjust lot lines, or divide any land within the jurisdictional limits of these regulations 
which results in a lot combination, lot line adjustment, subdivision, minor land 
division, or a replat as defined herein; no such lot combination, lot line adjustment, 
subdivision, minor land division, or replat, as defined herein shall be entitled to 
recording and no street shall be laid or public improvement made to land without 
compliance with all requirements of Chapter 17 of the Municipal Code. 

 
D. INSTALLATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS – The installation of all 

required improvements including but not limited to stormwater, streets, sidewalks, 
bike paths, water systems, sewer systems, fire protection, utilities shall be in 
accordance with all applicable City Appleton regulations.   

 

E.   GENERAL PROVISIONS  

  
1.  Enforcement 

The provisions of the Schaefer Street Planned Development designation and the 
development plan relating to the use of the land shall be effective and in force 
unless so amended as required by the Appleton Municipal Code Section 23-151.  
     

 2.  Breach of Provisions of PD Designation 
If at any time any provision or requirements stated in the Schaefer Street Planned 
Development designation have been breached by the Owner/Developer, the City 
may withhold approval of any or all platting or the issuance of any or all grading or 
building permits or occupancy permits applied for on the property, until such 
breach has been remedied. 

 
 3.  Binding Effect 

This Schaefer Street Planned Development designation shall run with the land 
and be binding upon the Owner/Developer, their respective successors, 
representatives and assigns, and all persons who may hereafter acquire an 
interest in the Property or any part thereof, with the exception that provisions of 



 

 

 6 

this designation may be modified through an amendment in accordance with the 
procedure stated in the Appleton Municipal Code Section 23-151. This 
designation shall be recorded in order to put prospective purchasers or other 
interested persons on notice as to the terms contained herein. 

 
 4.  Entire Designation 

This designation contains all provisions and requirements incumbent upon the 
Owner/Developer relative to Schaefer Street PD  #10-21, except as modified by 
subsequent action of the Appleton Common Council in accordance with 
procedures set forth in the Appleton Municipal Code Section 23-151 to amend 
planned developments, and except that nothing contained herein shall be 
construed as waiving any requirements of the Appleton Municipal Code or other 
regulations otherwise applicable to the development of the Property.   

 
 5.  Period of Validity 

The Implementation Plan and Development Plan (Exhibit B) as approved by the 
Common Council shall remain valid of a period of one (1) year during which time 
a building permit must be applied for and received. If the applicant does not apply 
for and receive a building permit within one (1) year from the date of Common 
Council approval of PD overlay district PD #10-21, Development Plan and 
Implementation Plan Document (IPD), the Development Plan and Implementation 
Plan Document (IPD) will constitute abandonment of the PD overlay district and 
related approvals, and any assumed development rights over that allowed 
through the underlying zoning district and shall be subject to the regulations in 
Section 23-151, Proof of validity and expiration of plans, of this chapter. 

 
 6.  Recording of Development Plan and Implementation Plan Document (IPD) 

This designation must be signed by both the City and the Owner/Developer and 
must be recorded by the owner (Dean Kroening - KKREW Properties) in the 
Calumet County Register of Deeds’ Office and a recorded copy of the 
Development Plan and Implementation Plan Document (IPD) shall be provided to 
the Community Development Department.  This constitutes approval of the 
Development Plan and Implementation Plan Document (IPD), conditions applied, 
modifications and any density premiums, which may be granted, and exceptions, 
if any, to the plan shown in the application ordered by the Common Council. 

 
 
 
  Dated this                     day of                                            , 2021. 
 
 
 
      By:                                                                              
          Owner 
      Title:    



 

 

 7 

 
      By:                                                                              
          Owner 
      Title:    
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN        ) 
                                               )ss 
COUNTY OF                          ) 
Personally came before me this            day of                                                     , 20      , 
the above named                                                    , and                                                   , 
to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 
 
                                                                                         
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My Commission expires ______________________    
  
                                     
The above Implementation Plan for Schaefer Street PD #10-21 was drafted by the 
undersigned at the request of the Property Owner. 
 
____(Insert Name)________                                                       __________ 
Drafter’s Signature         Date 
 
 
Approved as to form:   CITY OF APPLETON, a Wisconsin 
       Municipal Corporation 
                                                    
Christopher R. Behrens   By:   _____________                                          
Appleton City Attorney   Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 
 
             Attest:                                                                 
       Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN      ) 
                                               )ss 
COUNTY OF OUTAGAMIE   ) 
 
Personally came before me this            day of                                    , 2021, the above-
named Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor of City of Appleton, and Kami Lynch, City Clerk of City 
of Appleton, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 
                                                                                         
      Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
      My Commission expires ______________________   



EXHIBIT A 

 

2121 S. Schaefer Street 

Parcel #: 31-9-1114-01 

 

Legal Description: 

Being a part of Lot Twenty (20), Purdy Farm Plat, locate in the Northwest Quarter (NW1/4) of Section 

Five (5), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Eighteen (18) East, City of Appleton, Calumet County, 

Wisconsin containing 22,678 square feet (0.521 acres) of land and being described by: 

Beginning at the southeast corner of said Lot 20; thence N89º-28’-39”W 190.15 feet along the south line 

of said Lot 20 to the southwest corner thereof; thence N00º-15’-26”W 119.30’ along the west line of said 

Lot 20; thence S89º-28’-39”E 190.08 feet to a point on the east line of said Lot 20; thence S00º-17’-39”E 

119.30 feet along said east line of Lot 20 to the point of beginning.  Being subject to any and all 

easements and restrictions of record.  

 





 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

 

 

 

TO:  Parks & Recreation Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza, Director of Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

 

DATE:  September 20, 2021 

 

RE:  Action Item:  Award Design, Engineering, and Permitting Services for the WE 

Energies Trail to KL Engineering for a contract amount of $134,912.58. 

 

The 2021 Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department Capital Improvement 

Projects Fund includes funding for design, engineering, and permitting for the WE Energies 

Trail. There will be 1.6 miles of off-road trail developed under the WE Energies power lines 

starting at Oneida Street and ending at Woodland Park/Horizons Elementary School. 

Additionally, another half mile of supplemental wayfinding and route signage along Schaefer 

Circle connecting to Lake Park Road is also included in the project. The estimated cost of the 

project is $1,200,000. Federal DOT TAP funding will cover $516,292 with the City’s funding 

covering the remaining $683,708. Final design of the project is estimated to be finished in 2023 

with construction completed in 2024.  

 

The proposed trail development is identified in the following documents: City of Appleton Trails 

Master Plan, PRFMD Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, 5-Year Bike Lane and Trail 

Plan, City of Appleton Transportation Plan, City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan, and the East 

Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan.  

    

Two requests for qualification (RFQ) proposals were submitted for the design, engineering, and 

permitting of the WE Energies Trail. Firms were evaluated for relevant WisDOT non-traditional 

experience, past utility corridor projects, project team, project understanding, and project schedule. 

Below is the pricing received from the RFQ proposals. 

 

 Company      Proposal Costs  

 KL Engineering  $134,912.58   

 EXP    $128,000.00  

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


KL Engineering has more experience with WisDOT non-traditional trail projects with numerous 

projects being within WE Energies corridors. KL Engineering has proven to be proficient in 

WisDOT design submittals, WE Energies coordination, transportation management plans, design 

study reports, WisDOT PS&E documents, WisDNR permitting, Section 106 archeology and state 

historical permitting, WisDOT utility process, and WisDOT highway permitting.   

 

KL Engineering was determined to be the most experienced firm for the scope of work for the WE 

Energies Trail Project.  It is the recommendation of the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

Department to execute a contract with KL Engineering in the amount of $134,912.58. 

  

Please feel free to contact me at 832-5572 or by email at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any 

questions or comments.  

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


























  

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Finance Committee 

   

FROM: Tony Saucerman, Finance Director 

   

DATE: September 20, 2021 

 

RE:  Request to award 3-year contract to CliftonLarsonAllen LLP to provide audit 

services for the 2021, 2022 and 2023 annual audits 

  

 

The City’s current contract with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA) to provide audit services 

expired upon completion of the 2020 audit in June, 2021.  In July, 2021 an RFP for audit 

services for the years 2021 – 2023 was issued.  The RFP drew six responses from public 

accounting firms.  The responses were evaluated by a team of staff from the Finance 

Department, Department of Public Works, Attorneys Office and Valley Transit.  The results of 

the scoring (95 max.) are indicated below along with the three-year costs proposed by each firm. 

 

Firm Name  Score   2021  2022  2023  Total  

CLA    81           $  78,540         $  80,100         $  80,900        $239,540 

Baker Tilly  79           $100,250         $103,600         $106,950        $310,800 

Sikich LLP  72           $  62,920         $  63,550         $  64,190        $190,660 

KerberRose SC 69           $  71,375         $  72,950         $  75,100        $219,425 

Lauterbach &  

      Amen, LLP 67           $  39,520         $  40,774         $  42,028        $122,322 

BerganKDV  56           $  65,000         $  67,000         $  69,000        $201,000 

 

Based on the overall scoring, staff is requesting the Finance Committee’s approval to award the 

contract to CliftonLarsonAllen LLP.  CliftonLarsonAllen LLP has been the City’s independent 

auditors for the past five years.   We have been happy with the service they have provided as 

they have shown to be very knowledgeable, professional, helpful, and flexible.  Although not the 

lowest cost response, based on our experience with them and their experience providing auditing 

and consulting services to many Wisconsin municipalities, we are confident, as evidenced by the 

overall scores above, they provide the best value.  Their proposed fee for 2021 represents a 2% 

increase over the cost of the 2020 audit. 

 

If you have any questions on this request, feel free to contact me. 
 



 

   

 

 

 

TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: September 22, 2021 

RE: Request to Waive Repurchase Rights for Lot 4 of Plat 1 in the Northeast 
Business Park 

 
The City has received a request to waive their repurchase rights per Section XII of the 
Deed Restrictions and Covenants (attached) for the above-mentioned parcel to allow for 
the transfer from Chad Cassiani to Delanie D. McGlone or assigns (accepted Offer to 
Purchase attached).  The purchase price is $175,000.00, which is $126,811.59 per acre 
based on the 1.38 acre parcel size.   
 
Lots 3 and 4 were originally sold by the City on February 22, 2001 to Robert Niebauer of 
Professional Realty Development Corporation for $98,700.  Subsequently, Lots 3 and 4 
were sold to Chad Cassiani in October 2006.  Based on the transfer fee indicated on the 
Deed, the sale price was approximately $164,000.  Council approved the sale of Lot 3 in 
2018 and, subsequently, a 5,808 square foot office building has been built. 

 
Staff Recommendation:    

The Community and Economic Development Committee waive the City’s Repurchase 
Rights for Lot 4, Plat 1, in the Northeast Business Park, allowing the transfer from Chad 
Cassiani to Delanie D. McGlone or assigns.  This waiver of repurchase rights is not 
transferable, survivable, or assignable.  The City’s Repurchase Rights would remain on 
this property. 

 
 
 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 































Fre
nc

h R
oa

d

Evergreen Dr

U.S.H. 41

S.T
.H

. 4
41

Lot 4
ESOP

Parnters/
KOM Wealth

Mgmt.

WI
Swim

Academy

Evergreen
Office
SuitesEl Jaripeo

USA Youth
Sports Complex Badger Sports Park

Prepared by City of Appleton
Comm. & Econ. Dev. Dept. 9/21

0 375 750 Feet

Ü

Legend
Park Boundary
City Limits
1-6510-4
Park Parcels

Northeast Business Park
Appleton, Wisconsin



69-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 23 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY 
OF APPLETON AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP WHICH IS A PART THEREOF, BY 
MAKING THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT AS NOW PROVIDED. 

(City Plan Commission 10/6/2021) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1: That Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton and the Official Zoning Map, which is a part thereof, is amended by making the following 

changes: 

To rezone lands located at 2121 South Schaefer Street (Tax Id #31-9-1114-01), 
including the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of South Schaefer Street from 
PD/C-2 Calumet Street Planned Development General Commercial District #34-84 
to PD/C-2 Planned Development General Commercial District #10-21. (Planned 
Development Rezoning #10-21 – KKREW Properties/Dean Kroening, owner and 
applicant) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
Being a part of Lot Twenty (20), Purdy Farm Plat, locate in the Northwest Quarter 
(NW1/4) of Section Five (5), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Eighteen (18) 
East, City of Appleton, Calumet County, Wisconsin containing 22,678 square feet 
(0.521 acres) of land and being described by: 
 
Beginning at the southeast corner of said Lot 20; thence N89º-28’-39”W 190.15 feet 
along the south line of said Lot 20 to the southwest corner thereof; thence N00º-15’-
26”W 119.30’ along the west line of said Lot 20; thence S89º-28’-39”E 190.08 feet 
to a point on the east line of said Lot 20; thence S00º-17’-39”E 119.30 feet along said 
east line of Lot 20 to the point of beginning.  Being subject to any and all easements 
and restrictions of record.  
 
COMMON DESCRIPTION: 
 
2121 South Schaefer Street (Tax Id #31-9-1114-01), including the adjacent one-half 
(1/2) right-of-way of South Schaefer Street 

 
Section 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication the Director of Community and Economic 

Development is authorized and directed to make the necessary changes to the Official Zoning Map 



in accordance with this Ordinance. 

 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 9-15-21
	0002_1_Mental Health Day Proclamation
	0002_2_Coming Out Day Proclamation
	0002_3_Indigenous Peoples' Day Proclamation
	0002_4_White Cane Awareness Day Proclamation
	0002_5_Fire Prevention Week Proclamation
	0002_6_Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation
	0003_1_COVID -19 Council Update 100621
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	VACCINATIONS  TO  DATE   (10/04/21)

	0004_1_RZ 10-21_Notice of Public Hearing
	RE: Proposed Zone Change

	0005_1_StaffReport_Schaefer Street_Rezoning_For09-08-21
	0006_1_WE Energies Trail Committee Memo
	0007_1_Apple Fields DA
	0008_1_TUF Study Memo
	0009_1_2021-2023 Audit Services
	0010_1_Memo Repurchase Waiver Lot 4 NEBP Plat 1_9-22-21
	0010_2_Lots 1-6 NE Business Park Plat 1 Covenants Waiver Except Repurchase Rights
	0010_3_Offer to Purchase Lot 4 Plat 1 NE Business Park McGlone
	0010_4_Lot 4 NEBP
	0011_1_Ordinances going to Council 10-6-21
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION:


